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Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
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Annual Finandial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Directors’ Respopsibiiiﬁes and Apﬂr_oval - -

The diractors are required in terms of the Banking Act (46:04) and Companies Act (42:01) to maintain adequate accounting
records and are responsible for the content and Integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information
included in this report. 1t Is thelr responsibiiity to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of
the bank as at the end of the financiat year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in
conformity with Internationat Financial Reporting Standarde. The extemal auditors are gngaged to express an independent

opinton on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in aocordance with fnternationa! Finandial Reporting Standards and are based
upon appropriate accounting poiicies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowiedge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of interna! financial control establishied by the bank
and place considerable impottance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss In a cost effective manner.
The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a cleady defined framawork, effective accounting
pracedures and adequate segregation of dutles to ensure an acceptable levet of risk. These controls are moritored throughout
the bank and alt employnes are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the bank's business is conducted
in a manner that in afl reasonable diroumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the bank is on identifying,
assessing, managing and maonitoring all known forms of risk across the bank. While operating flsk cannot be fully etiminated, the
hank endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systerns and athical behaviour are applied
and managed within predeterminad proceduras and constrairts.

The directars are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by managernent, that the system of internal
control provides reascnable assurance that the financial records may be refisd on for the preparation of the annual financial

statements. However, any syster of internal financial controt can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance, against
material misstatement o loss.

The directors have reviewed the bank's cash fiow foracast for the year 10 31 March 2023 and, in light of this review and the
current financial position, they are satisfied that the bank has or had access 1o adequate rescurcss to continue In operational

axistence for the foreseeable future.

pendently auditing and reporting on the bank's annual fnancial statements. The

The external auditors are rasponsible for inde
d by the bank's external audiiors and their report is presented on pages Glo9.

annual financial stalements have been examine!

which have beer prepared on the going concem basis, were

The annual financial statements set out on pages 10 10 80,
and wera signed on their bahalf by:

approvegby theboardon 249 Jumar 013

P —
Chairman / tdanaging Director
S Bagop! § Joshi



Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
(Registration number BW00000570268)
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Director's Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Economic performance of Botswana witnessed growth in the year 2021 amid improved demand due to the containment
measures for Covid-19 and opening of economy. This was made possible by the effective roll-out of COVID-19 vaccination
programmes which helped contain the virus and boosted economic recovery. However, the pandemic took a turn in the second
half of the year, with the emergence of a new variants, Omicron first detected in Botswana and South Africa in November 2021.
In the circumstances, global inflation increased from 3.2 percent in 2020 to 4.3 percent in 2021. In Botswana, real Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) grew by 8.6 in the twelve months to September 2021, compared to a contraction of 7.3 % in the year
to September 2020. The growth was mainly attributable to the Covid-19 pandemic containment measures in the year.

The Central Bank (Bank of Botswana) maintained an accommodative monetary policy stance during 2021 in view of the positive
inflation outlock in the medium term. The Bank Rate was, maintained at 3.75 percent in 2021 to support economic activity.

1.  Background

Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited was incorporated in Botswana on 17th August 2000 as a Company with limited liability under
the Companies Act (CAP 42:01) and was licensed as a Commercial Bank on 06th September 2000 under Section 6 of the
Banking Act, 1995. The Bank is wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda, India. It started its operations by opening its first
branch at Acumen Park, Plot 50370, Fairgrounds, Gaborone, Botswana on 26th March 2001. The Bank had shifted to the
existing premises at A.K.D. House, Lot 1108, The Main Mal,, Gaborone in January 2005. The second branch of the Bank was
opened at Francistown on 5th Dec.2007. The third branch of the Bank was opened at Gaborone industrial Area (G-West) on
22.02.2013. Fourth branch of the Bank was opened at Palapye on 16-03-2020.

2. Activities

The Bank continues to be engaged in the business of commercial banking and provides a wide array of financial services.

3. Business performance

The business of the Bank reported positive growth of about 6.89 % during the year. The growth remain comparatively low to
previous year due to lower growth in Credit and Term Deposits.

This year net profit of the Bank stood at P59.41 mn for the year as compared to P51.29 mn during the previous year showing a
positive growth over last year mainly due to increase in interest income in Loans and advances, containment of impairment and
controfling cost.

Asset Quality of the bank has improved during the year. The gross NPLs to total advances was 0.76 % as against 0.99 % in
March 2021. Bank was able to arrest fresh NPLs and fresh NPLs were P 2.4 mn in the year.

Key financials during 2021-22

¢ The total business of the Bank grew by 6.88% during the year.

« - The total deposit grew from P1807.30 MN to P1906.84 MN during FY 2021-22 up by 5.51%.

» Total CASA deposits increased by 4.87%.

* The fotal advances grew from P 1507.84 MN to P1640.71 MN during the FY 2021-22 up by 8.5%.
s CD ratio is 85.84 % as on 31 March 2022.

+  Capital Adequacy ratio stood at 24.26 % against regulatory requirement of 12.50%

*  The cost of deposits has decreased from 2.40% to 2.28% during the year

+ The yield on advances was at 7.55% as against 7.38 % last year.

s Networth of the Bank as on 31 March 2022 is P442.26 MN.

* Business per employee has increased to P55.36mn as on 31.03.2022 from P55.25 MN on 31.03.2021
4



Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited

(Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Director's Report

Gross profits of the Bank reporied growth of 14.83% and reached to P75.43mn against last years figure of P§5.69 MN.
+  Net profit reportad Increased to P58.41 MN In 2021-22 from P81.23 MN in last year i.e. a growth of 15,83 %.

+  Net Interest Margin was 4.22 % in the year as against 3.47% in 2021.

o The cos! to income ratic has increased to 30.49 % against 28.80 % last year.

»  Gross NPLs decreased from 21429 mn to P12.56 mn, whereas the Net NPLs s P1.76 mn .

+  Barks NPL provigions coverage ratio is 85.91 %.

Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the bank are set out in these annual financial
statements.

4. Regulatory Compliances

Capital Adeguacy

With a capital adequacy ratio of 24.26% as at 31 March 2022 as against the regulatory requirement of 12.50%, the Bank is still
comfortable and has the requisite risk-bearing capacity and keen on improving it further to expand its assets base.

Liguidity

Bank has been monitoring maintenance of fiquidity ratio on daily basis and has been in compliance of the mandatory
raquirement of 10% comfortably.

Bank has also complied with the maintenance of CRR as stipulated by Bank of Batswana from time to fime.

Reporting to FIA

Bank has comglied with the reporting requirements of Financial intefligence Agency (FIA) and Bank Is reporting cash
transactions and IFTs, EFTS 1o FIA as per their requirements.

Chairman Managing Director
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements - -
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited (the
Bank) set out on pages 10 to 58, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2022, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

fn cur opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of, the
financial position of the Bank as at 31 March 2022, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with international Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Bank in accordance with the {nternational Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and other
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of annual financial statements
in Botswana, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Botswana Accountancy Oversight Authority registration numbaer: FAP 005 2016 fAudit Firm of Public interest Entity) Aember of Grant Th t ted
Eotswane institute of Chartersd Accountants membership numbar: MeFBWIIS (Audit and Mon-Audit) Offlcos In Gaborons & Franclstown
Partners

Kalyonaraman Yijay {Mancging), Aswin Vaidyenothan®, Madhavan Venk hary®, Anthony Quashie, Sunny K Mulakutom”,

Aparne Vijoy* {*Indian}

www.grantthornton.co.bw



"KEY AREA

'The assessment of

9 GrantThornton

" | WHY CONSIDERED

| SIGNIFICANT

allowance for losses on
loans and advances

| The credit impairment
provision inherently contains

| a significant amount of
estimation uncertainty
especially with regard to
identifying impaired loans
and quantifying loan
impairment because
significant judgement is
required of management
regarding inputs into the
calculation.

To assess the amount of
provisions for expected
losses, the bank applies
significant judgements
considering past due history

The calculation logic and its
comprehensiveness depend
on the Bank's management’s
judgement, thus this has
been considered a significant
matter

—1

' OUR APPROACH

| Our audit procedures included
considering the appropriateness
of the loans and advances
impairment provision.

We assessed the adequacy and
appropriateness of the
methodology used by the Bank
to identify loan impairments and
calculate provisions on financial
assets.

Our audit response focused on
the significant judgements,
inputs used by management in
their impairment calculation.

We formed an independent view |

on levels of provisions required
by examining available
information (both external and

| internal).

We developed our own
assessment of the staging of
loans and compared it to those
classified by the bank and noted
that the bank’s categorisation of

loans and advances into different ‘

stages after considering whether
any loans were past due over an
observation period and also
considering the sector risk Using
the information available, we
calculated the probability of
default, and the likely credit loss
and compared it against the
impairment charge as per the
books and the management’s
workings,

We noted that the overali ECL

impairment provision determined |

by the bank was within an

| acceptable range.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the general information and Statement of Responsibilities by the Board of Directors and
the supplementary information, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report,
and other sections of the annual report, which are expected to be made available to us
after that date. Other information does not include the annual financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these annual financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
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» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the bank’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

-]

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Grromt  Thoorndsn
Grant Thornton

Firm of auditors of public interest entity
Practicing member : Madhavan Venkatachary( CAP 0017 2022

Gaborone
23 ﬂ‘.d)j 2022 \9?




Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
{Registration number BWQ0000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Statement of Financia! Position as at 31 March 2022

Figures in Pula thousand Note 2022 2021
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 93,827 152,117
Balances with other banks 5 392,440 489,504
Financial assets - Investments 6 281,204 111,378
Loans and advances 7 1,585,846 1,450,351
Other assets 8 2,542 3,731
Right of use asset g 7,641 10,443
Deferred tax 10 10 10
Property, plant and equipment 11 4,602 5,548
Total Assets 2,368,112 2,223,082
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Stated capital 12 181,000 181,000
Retained income 261,258 210,801
442,258 391,801
Liabilities
Deposit due to customers 13 1,910,814 1,809,772
Other accruals and creditors 15 7,376 11,044
Lease liabilities 14 7.564 10,365
1,925,854 1,831,181
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,368,112 2,223,082
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Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
(Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Figures in Pula thousand Note 2022 2021
Effective interest and similar income 16 124,014 107,681
Effective interest and similar expenditure 17 (41,472) (40,182)
Net interest income 82,542 67,399
Nen-interest income 18 22,985 26,555
Other operating gains (losses) 18 245 6
Movement in credit loss allowances 20 709 (266)
Other operating expenses (30,345) (28,003)
Profit before taxation 76,136 65,691
Income tax expenses 21 {16,730) (14,400)
Profit for the year 59,406 51,281

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 59,406 51,291

[



Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
{Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Statement of Changes in Equity

Stated capital Retained Total equity
Figures in Pula thousand income
Balance at 01 April 2020 181,000 168,660 349,660
Profit for the year - 51,291 51,291
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 51,291 51,291
Dividends - {(9,050) (8,050}
Total distributions to owners of company recognised directly in equity - {9,050) {9,050)
Balance at 01 April 2021 181,000 210,902 391,902
Profit for the year - 59,406 59,406
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 59,406 59,406
Dividends - (9,050) (9,050)
Total distributions to owners of company recognised directly in equity - {9,050) {9,050}
Balance at 31 March 2022 181,000 261,258 442,258
Note(s) - 12

12



Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited

(Registration number BW00000570268)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Statement of Cash Flows

Figures in Pula thousand Note(s) 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 23 47,505 23,132
Interest and similar income (124,014) (107,581)
interest and similar expenditure 41,472 40,182
interest received 122,911 105,862
Interest paid (38,823) (41,190)
Interest charges on lease liabilities (732) (323)
Income tax received/(paid) 24 (16,730) (17.000)
Net cash from operating activities 31,589 3,089
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment " (530) {1,496)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 1 245 22
Net cash from investing activities {285) (1,474)
Cash flows from financing activities

Lease payments (2,801) (3,079)
Dividends paid 25 {9,050) {9,050)
Net cash from financing activities (11,851) {12,129)
Total cash movement for the year 19,453 {10,514)
Cash at the beginning of the year 752,999 765,983
Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances (4,981) (2,470)
Total cash at end of the year 4 767,471 752,899
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Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
(Registration number BWQ0000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Accounting Policies

1. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the gaing concern basis in accordance with, and in compliance with,
international Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC")
interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these annual financial statements and the Banking Act (46:04).
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting
policies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented inPula, which is the
bank's functional currency and rounded off to the nearest thousands.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 2.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires management, from time to time, to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are
beliaved to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies, apart from those invelving estimations, that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, are outlined as follows:

Revenue recognition

In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue set out in IFRS 15 and, in
particular, whether the bank had met all the performance obligations relating to non interest income.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

tmpairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The bank
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the bank’'s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions and inputs used, refer to the individual notes addressing financial assets,

Fair value estimation

Several assets and liabilities of the bank are either measured at fair value or disclosure is made of their fair values.

Observable market data is used as inputs to the extent that it is available.

Impairment testing

The bank reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management determine the recoverable amount by performing
value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. When it is not

possible to determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management assesses the recoverable amount for the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

14



Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
{Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Accounting Policies

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management assess the appropriateness of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
The useful lives of motor vehicles, furniture and computer equipment are determined based on bank replacement policies for the
various assets, Individual assets within these classes, which have a significant carrying amount are assessed separately to
consider whether replacement will be necessary outside of normal replacement parameters,

When the estimated useful life of an asset differs from previous estimates, the change is applied prospectively in the
determination of the depreciation charge.

Impact of CoVID-19 Pandemic

The CoVID 19 pandemic has caused significant economic distress to the world as a whole and impacts the bank’s provisioning
under the IFRS 9 ECL requirements. The bank uses all reasonable and supportable information that is available to it without
undue cost or effort when applying IFRS 8, instead of relying on some mechanistic criterion (for example, treating payment
holidays as automatic evidence of a significant increase in credit risk) to determine movements in ECL.

Taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legisiation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ulimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Bank recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

The bank recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is prabable that the
deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax

assets requires the bank to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future
taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws. To the extent that
future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the bank to realise the net deferred tax
assets recorded at the balance sheet date could be impacted.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, piant and equipment are tangible assets which the bank holds for its own use or for rental to others and which are
expected to be used for more than one year.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the bank, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly attributable to
the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying assets and adjustments
in respect of hedge accounting, where appropriate.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the bank and the cost can be
measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged
to write off the asset's carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best
reflects the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the bank. Leased assets are depreciated in a
consistent manner over the shorter of their expected useful lives and the lease term. Depreciation is not charged to an asset if its
estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date
that the asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

15



Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited

(Registration number BWO00000570268)
Annuatl Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Accounting Policies

1.3 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

hem Depreciation method Average useful life
Leasehold property Straight line Over the lease period
Office equipments Straight line 4-10 years

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 6-10 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 4 years

IT equipment Straight fine 3 years

Computer software Straight line 3 years

Leasehold improvements Straight line Over the lease period

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with & cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable
amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and eguipment,
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is included in profit
or loss when the item is derecognised.

1.4 Financial instruments

Financial instruments held by the bank are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS @ Financial Instruments.
Broadly, the classification possibilities, which are adopted by the bank ,as applicable, are as follows:

Financial asseis which are debt instruments:
. Amortised cost.

Financial liabilities:
. Amortised cost

Note 29 Financial instruments and risk management presents the financial instruments held by the bank based on their specific
classifications.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The specific accounting policies for the classification, recognition and measurement of each type of financial instrument held by
the bank are presented below:
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial instruments at amortised cost
Classification

Cash and cash equivalents , balance with other banks , financial assets - investments and loans and advances (note 7) are
classified as financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost.

They have been classified in this manner because the contractual terms of these loans give rise, on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and theyear's business model is to collect
the contractual cash flows on these loans.

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the loan. The loans are
measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the loan initially, minus principal repayments, plus cumulative amortisation
(interest) using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowance.

Application of the effective interest method
Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method, and is included in profit or loss in interest and similar income.

The application of the effective interest method to calculate interest income on a financial asset measured at amortised cost is
dependent on the credit risk of the loan as follows:

. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the loan, pravided the loan is not credit impaired.
The gross carrying amount is the amortised cost before adjusting for a loss allowance.

. if a loan is purchased or originated as credit-impaired, then a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost in the determination of interest. This treatment does not change over the life of the loan, even if it is no
longer credit-impaired,

. If a loan was not purchased or originally credit-impaired, but it has subsequently become credit-impaired, then the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the loan in the determination of interest. If, in subsequent
periods, the loan is no longer credit impaired, then the interest calculation reverts to applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount.

Loans denominated in foreign currencies

When a loan receivable is denominated in a foreign currency, the carrying amount of the loan is determined in the foreign
currency. The carrying amount is then translated to the Pula equivalent using the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Any resulting foreign exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the other operating income (note 18).

Details of foreign currency risk exposure and the management thereof are provided in the specific loan notes and in the financial
instruments and risk management (note 29).

Impairment

The bank recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on all loans receivable measured at amortised cost. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective loans.

The bank measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a loan has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, then the loss allowance for that loan is measured at 12 month expected credit losses (12 month ECL).

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected fife of a

loan. In contrast, 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a loan
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Financial instruments (continued)

In order to assess whether to apply lifetime ECL or 12 month ECL, in other words, whether or not there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the bank considers whether there has been a significant increase in the risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition rather than at evidence of a loan being credit impaired at the reporting date or of an
actual default occurring.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a loan has increased significantly since initial recognition, the bank compares the risk of a
default occurring on the loan as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring as at the date of initial recognition.

The bank considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort, Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the counterparties operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic information.

irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the credit risk on a loan is always presumed to have increased
significantly since initial recognition if the contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the bank has reasconable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

By contrast, if a loan is assessed to have a low credit risk at the reporting date, then it is assumed that the credit risk on the loan
has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

The bank regularly monitars the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For purposes of internal credit risk management purposes, the bank consider that a default event has occurred if there is either a
breach of financial covenants by the counterparty, or if internal or external information indicates that the counterparty is unlikely
to pay its creditors in full (without taking collateral into account).

Irespective of the above analysis, the bank considers that default has occurred when a loan instalment is more than 90 days
past due unless there is reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Write off policy

The bank writes off a loan when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Loans written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the bank racovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.

The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. The exposure at default is the gross carrying amount of the loan at the reporting date.

Lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis in cases where evidence of significant increases in credit risk are not yet
available at the individual instrument level. Loans are then grouped in such a manner that they share similar credit risk
characteristics, such as nature of the loan, external credit ratings (if available), industry of counterparty etc.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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If the bank has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the bank
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12 month ECL at the current reporting date, and vice versa.

An impairment gain or loss is recognised for all loans in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account. The impairment loss is included in other operating expenses in profit or loss as a movement
in credit loss allowance (note 20).

Credit risk

Details of credit risk related to loans receivable are included in the specific notes and the financial instruments and risk
management (note 29).

Derecognition

Refer to the "derecognition” section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to derecognition.
Balances due to other banks, deposit due to customers

Classification

Balances due to other banks and Deposit due to customers are classified as financial liabilities subsequently measured at
amorlised cost.

Recognition and measurement

Balances due to other banks and deposits due to customers are recognised when the bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. These are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other

premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest expense, calculated on the effective interest method, is included in profit or loss in interest and similar expenditure.

Financial liabilities expose the bank to liquidity risk and interest rate risk, Refer fo note 29 for details of risk exposure and
management thereof.

Financial liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

When financial liabilities are denominated in a foreign currency, the carrying amount of the loan is determined in the foreign
currency. The carrying amount is then translated to the Pula equivalent using the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Any resuiting foreign exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the other operating gains (note 19).

Details of foreign currency risk exposure and the management thereof are provided in the specific loan notes and in the financial
instruments and risk management {note 29).

Derecognition

Refer to the derecognition section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to derecognition.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Accruals and other payables
Classification

Accruals and other payabies (note 15), excluding VAT and amounts received in advance, are classified as financial liabilities
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at carrying amount which is deemed to be fair value. These are measured at amortised
costs.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transters the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If thebank
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to controt the transferred asset,
the bank recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have fo pay. If the bank
retains substantiaily all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the bank continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

The bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the bank obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
inciuding any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

1.5 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of
current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered
from) the tax authorifies, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in & transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit {tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is

realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by theend of
the reporting period.
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1.5 Tax (continued)
Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to the
extent that the tax arises from:
. a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income, or

. a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that are
credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in
the same or a different period, directly in equity.

1.6 Leases
The bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at the inception of the contract.

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to controt the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

in order to assess whether a contract is, or contains a lease, management determine whether the asset under consideration is
“identified", which means that the asset is either explicitly or implicitly specified in the contract and that the supplier does not
have a substantial right of substitution throughout the period of use. Once management has concluded that the contract deals
with an identified asset, the right to control the use thereof is considered. To this end, control over the use of an identified asset
only exists when the bank has the right to substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset as well as the right
to direct the use of the asset.

In circumstances where the determination of whether the contract is or contains a lease requires significant judgement, the
relevant disclosures are provided in the significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty section of these accounting
policies.

Bank as lessee

A lease liability and corresponding right-of-use asset are recognised at the lease commencement date, for all lease agreements
for which the bank is a lessee, except for short-term leases of 12 months or less, or leases of low value assets. For these leases,
the bank recognises the lease payments as an operating expense {note 20) on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed,

The various lease and non-lease components of contracts containing leases are accounted for separately, with consideration
being allocated to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of the lease components and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components (where non-lease components exist).

However as an exception to the preceding paragraph, the bank has efected not to separate the non-lease components for leases
of land and buildings.

Details of leasing arrangements where the bank is a lessee are presented in note 14 Leases (bank as lessee).
Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the bank uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
. fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives;
. variabie lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;
. the amount expected to be payable by the bank under residual value guarantees;
*  the exercise price of purchase options, if the bank is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
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1.6 Leases {continued)
. lease payments in an optional renewal periad if the bank is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option; and
° penalties for early termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability (or right-of-use
asset). The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period incurred and are included in operating expenses (note
20).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item on the Staternent of Financial Position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect lease payments made. Interest charged on the lease
liability is included in Interest and similar expenditure (note 17).

The bank remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) when:

*  there has been a change to the lease term, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate:

*  there has been a change in the assessment of whether the bank will exercise a purchase, termination or extension
option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate;

. there has been a change to the lease payments due to a change in an index or a rate, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used);

. there has been a change in expected payment under a residual value guarantee, in which case the lease liabifity is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate;

. a lease contract has been modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised payments using a revised discount rate.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
assel, or is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial Position and is initially measured at the
present value of lease payments.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the right of use assets comprise the following:

. the initial amount of the corresponding lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date;

. any initial direct costs incurred,

*  any estimated costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, when the bank incurs an obligation to do so, unless these costs are incurred to produce
inventories; and

. less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. However, if a
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the bank expects to exercise a
purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, Depreciation starts at
the commencement date of a lease.

For right-of-use assets which are depreciated over their useful lives, the useful lives are determined consistently with items of the
same class of property, plant and equipment. Refer to the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment for details of
useful lives.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. Each
part of a right-of-use asset with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
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1.6 Leases {continued)

When the Bank or lessor terminates or cancels a lease, the right of use asset and lease liability are derecognised. On
derecognition, any difference is recognised as a gain or loss in the profit of loss.

1.7 Impairment of assets

The bank assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. any
such indication exists, the bank estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the bank also;
* testsintangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangibie assets not yet available for use for impairment
annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed during the
annual pericd and at the same time every period.

if there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset, If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

if the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in
profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for
assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of
those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable o a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment ioss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation
increase.

1.8 Stated capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Ordinary shares are recognised at no par value and classified as 'stated capital' in equity.

1.8 Employee benefits

The bank's employees (other than employees seconded by the parent bank) are covered under a defined contribution pension
plan to which the bank contributes, For employees seconded by the parent bank, the bank contributes to a provident fund
managed by the parent bank.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans
where the bank’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement plan.

1.10 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
*  the bank has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
. itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
*  areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
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1.10 Provisions and contingencies (continued)
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity
settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset, The amount recognised for the reimbursement
shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obiligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a
provision,

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

. has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the business or part of a business concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for terminating their

services;

- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the pian will be implemented; and

. has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan
or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

. the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 26.
1.11 Recognition of Revenues and Expenses

The bank recognises revenue from the following major sources:
*  Interest income on financial instruments including loans and advances
. Fee and commission income
. Treasury commission and foreign exchange gains/losses.

Revenues and expenses are recognised in the profit or loss for alf interest-bearing instruments on an accrual basis using the
effective interest rate. Interest income on securities includes revenues from fixed and floating interest rate coupons and accrued
discount and premium, where significant and material. Fees and commissions are recognised in the profit or foss on an accrual
basis. Fees and commissions related to the provision of loans are accrued over the contractual term of the loan until its due date
and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in “Interest income”.For financial assets categorised into Stage 3,
the bank recognises interest income on the net financial asset after the recognition of expected credit loss.

Documentation and admin fees - This relates to fee and commission income related to the loans advances to customers.
Revenue from commitment fees is recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period. The amounts to be
recognised in future months are recognised as other fiabilities,

Transaction based fees such as electronic banking fees are charged to the customer's account when the transaction takes
place. Revenue relfated to transactions are recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

Account servicing fees are charged on a monthly basis. The fees are recognised as the services are performed and received.

Other expenses and revenues are recognised in the relevant period on an accrual basis.
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1.12 Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Pula, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:
. foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
*  non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
*  non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those
at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous annual financial statements are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. When a gain
or foss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Pula by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the Pula and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

1.13 Other assets

Included in other assets are prepayments, security deposits and other receivables. Except for prepayments, other assets are
financial assets carried at amortised cost. Prepayments are non-financial assets and are stated at their nominal vaiues.

1.14 Related parties
Parties are considered to be related to the Bank if meet the following definitions;

(a) A person or a close member of that person's family:

-has control or joint control over the Bank;

-has significant influence over the Bank; or

-is a member of the key management personnel of the Bank.

(b) An entity for which the following conditions apply:

-the entity and the Bank are members of the same group

-the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a)

-the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the Bank.

A number of transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These fransactions are
summarised in the notes to the financial statements.

1.15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for bonus element in equity share, atiributable to the shareholders.
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the
conversion of alt dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the
period unless issued at a later date.
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2. Changes in accounting policy

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards on a basis
consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised standards. These are given in Note 3.

3. New Standards and Interpretations
3.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the bank has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial
year and that are relevant to its operations:

COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 - Amendment to IFRS 16

In May 2020, the IASB published an amendment 'COVID- 19-Related Rent Concessions (amendment to IFRS 16)" (the
amendment). The amendment added a practical expedient to the Standard which provides relief for lessees in assessing\
whether specific COVID-19 rent concessions are considered to be lease modifications. Instead, if this practical expedient is
applied, these rent concessions are treated as if they are not lease modifications.

In light of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on business activity across the world, and response from feedback
received from stakeholders, the ASB decided to extend this relief for one year to provide relief for recent concessions in relation
to COVID-19 that reduce payments up until 30 June 2022.

The bank has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2022 annual financial statements,

The impact of the amendmaent is not material.

3.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The bank has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the bank’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2022 or later periods:

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendment to IAS 1

The amendment changes the requirements to classify a liability as current or non-current. If an entity has the right at the end of
the reporting period, to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period, then the liability is
classified as non-current.

If this right is subject to conditions imposed on the entity, then the right only exists, i, at the end of the reporting period, the entity
has complied with those conditions.

In addition, the classification is not affected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. Therefore, if
the right exists, the liability is classified as non-current even if management intends or expects to settle the liability within twelve
months of the reporting period. Additional disclosures wauld be required in such circumstances.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2023,

The bank expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2024 annual financial statements.

ftis unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the bank's annual financial statements.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The IFRS establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts
issued.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2023.
The bank expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2024 annual financial statements.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the bank's annual financial statements.
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3. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)
Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: Amendments to IFRS 9

The amendment concerns fees in the '10 per cent' test for derecognition of financial liabilities. Accordingly, in determining the
relevant fees, only fees paid or received between the borrower and the lender are to be included.

The effective date of the bank is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2022.

The bank expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2023 annual financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the bank's annual financial statements,

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use: Amendments to |1AS 16

The amendment relates to examples of items which are included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. Prior to
the amendment, the costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly were included in the cost of the asset after
deducting the net proceeds of selling any items which were produced during the test phase. The amendment now requires that
any such proceeds and the cost of those items must be included in profit or loss in accordance with the related standards.
Disclosure of such amounts in now specifically required.

The effective date of the bank is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2022,

The bank expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2023 annual financial statements.

it is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the bank's annual financial statements.
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4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 21,256 63,804
Balances with Bank of Botswana 72,571 88,223
93,827 152,117

Other cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement
Bank of Botswana Securities - Registered bonds 61,248 61,387
Bank of Botswana Securities - reverse repo 169,966 -
Balances with domestic banks 1,117 5,745
Short term placements with domestic banks 114,157 261,357
Balances with foreign banks 242,872 222,402
Short term placements with foreign banks 34,294 -
Bank of Botswana Certificates 49,990 49,991
Balance due to other banks - -
673,644 600,882
Cash and balances with Bank of Botswana 93,827 152,117
Other short term cash and cash equivalents 673,644 600,882
767,471 752,999
Cash and cash equivalents held by the entity that are not available for use by the bank. 37,050 33,050

Credit quality of cash and balances with Bank of Botswana

Cash in hand denominated in Pula and balances with the Bank of Botswana carry the sovereign credit risk rating of the
Government of Botswana which is rated A3 by Moody's investor services. The credit rating has has been downgraded from A2 to
A3 but outlook has changed from negative to stable. Also S&P maintained the country's sovereign credit rating for long and short
term foreign and local currency sovereign credit at ‘BBB+/A-2". However, S&P revised the economic outlook from negative to
stable on account of anticipated rebound in Botswana's economic growth, partially led by the diamond mining recovery.

Exposure to currency risk

Refer to note 28 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of currency risk management for cash and cash
equivalents.

5. Balance with other banks

Balances with domestic banks 1,117 5,745
Balances with foreign banks 242,872 222,402
Short term placements with domestic banks 114,157 261,357
Short term placements with foreign banks 34,294 -

392,440 489,504

Exposure to credit risk

Balance with other banks inherently exposes the bank to credit risk, being the risk that the bank will incur financiat loss if
counterparties fail to make payments as they fall due.
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5. Balance with other banks {continued)

Balance with other banks are subject to the impairment provisions of IFRS 9 Financial instruments, which requires a loss
allowance to be recognised for al exposures to credit risk. The loss allowance for balance with other banks is calcufated based
on twelve month expected losses if the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition. In cases where the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is calculated based on lifetime expected credit
losses. The loss allowance is updated to either twelve manth or lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date based on
changes in the credit risk since initial recognition. If a loan is considered to have a low credit risk at the reporting date, then it is
assumed that the credit risk has not increased significantly since Initial recognition. On the other hand, if a loan is in arrears more
than 20 days, then it is assumed that there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,

In determining the amount of expected credit losses, the bank has taken into account any historic default experience, the
financial positions of the shareholders as well as the future prospects in the industries in which the shareholders operate,

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the gross carrying amount as presented below. The bank does not hoid collateral or
other credit enhancements against balance with other banks.

Credit rating framework

For purposes of determining the credit loss allowances, management determine the credit rating grades of each loan at the end
of the reporting period. These ratings are determined either externally through ratings agencies or internally where externat
ratings are not available.

The table below sets out the internal credit rating framework which is applied by management for joans for which external ratings
are not available. The abbreviation "ECL" is used to depict "expected credit losses.”

Internal credit grade Description Basis for recognising
expected credit losses

Performing - Stage 1 Low risk of default and no amounts are past due 12 Manth ECL

Doubtful - Stage 2 Either 30 days past due or there has been a significant Lifetime ECL (not credit
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. impaired)

In default - Stage 3 Either 90 days past due or there is evidence that the assetis  Lifetime ECL (credit impaired)
credit impaired

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the counterparty is in severe  Amount is written off

financial difficulty and there is na realistic prospect of recovery.
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Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited

{Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes teo the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Pula thousand 2022 2021

5. Balance with other banks {continued)
Exposure to interest rate risk

Refer to note 28 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of interest rate risk management for balance
with other banks.

Fair value of balances with other banks
The fair value of balance with other banks approximates their carrying amounts.
6. Financial assets - investments

Financial assets - Investments are presented at amortised cost, which is net of loss allowance, as follows:

Bank of Botswana registered Bonds 61,248 61,387
Bark of Botswana reverse repo 169,966 -
Bank of Botswana Certificates 49,990 49,991

281,204 111,378

Exposure to credit risk

Financial assets - Investments inherently exposes the bank to credit risk, being the risk that the bank will incur financial loss if
counterparties fail to make payments as they fall due.

3



8.e°L11 8Leb1L
166°6¥ 166'6Y
8¢€'19 18€°19
junowe
3800 Bujhuen
pasnowy S80I
v02°182 v0Z°'182
066'6% 066'6%
996'691 996°691
8ve' L9 82’19
junouwe
3500 Buiuren
paspiowy S$S0405)

107 wig|
103 wzy

aouemolfe ssoj Jo siseq

103 wei
103 wgy
103 wigy

HSIUBMO}jE S50} JO Siseg

SIUBLISOAY] -

43

SI9SSe |2oueuy Ul SJUBUNSAAUL 10} JuswWabeuew Ysu ojes Jsalaul J0 sBIap 10} 67 S10U 0} oYy

%S 8)el JsauByul 0] dunsodxy

'SJUBWISaAUL - S}asse

[BroueuY Joj Juswebeuew ysu Aouaiind jo syetep o) Juswabeuew YSU [eioueUy pue sluSWNISUL [2DURULY §Z 910U 0] Jojoy

Bunwiopay
Bunusopsay
(ejqeoijdde
ausym) Buned
}PS8ID [euLBIU}

Bupuiopay
Bupuiopay
Buutiopay
(eiqeo)dde
adoym) Bupes
UPaIY ey

s Apoopy
s, Apoopy

fousBe Buney

s, Apoopy
s,Apoopy
s,Apooy

Aouabe Buyey

154

£Y

(sjqeoydde
atsym) Huned
pas jeusaxy

(sjqeogdde
astaym) Bunes
NP2Io feulsIxy

sl Aousaind 03 ainsodxg

Sejedlia) euemsiog JO yueg
spuog euemsiog Jo yueg

JuvwWNysU)
[FAITA
S9jEdLB) BUBMS]Og JO juBg

odal asianai - BUEMS}Og JO jueg
spuoq - euemsjog Jo Nueg

juswnaysuy

eoe

‘opeib Bunes upaio Aq syueq joylo yim SOUE{Rq 10} 58550} J1pa1d Paoadxs Jo siseq usweinsesw pue 3duemojie ssof ‘wunowe Bulkires ay} jno 1os sejqe; Buimojjoy oy

S20UBMO|je S80] JIpaLD)

(penuyuod) syuswyseau) - sjesse feppueuly g

Sjuswisje)s |erdueUly [enuuY By} 0} SajON

¢Z0Z UOIeN Le pepus lead ayy o) Sjuswalesg jepugul jenuuy
(89202500000M8 J2quinu uoessiBay)

pajiwi (euemsjog) eposeg jo yueg



Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
{Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Pula thousand 2022 2021

6. Financial assets - investments (continued)
Fair values
The fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying amounts.

7. Loans and advances

Financial instruments:

Term loans 1,272,222 1,203,404
Loans and overdrafts against bank own deposits 104,753 75,887
Demand and overdraft advances 263,726 228,455
Loss allowance (54,855) (57,485)
Loans and advances at amortised cost 1,585,846 1,450,351
Total loans and advances 1,585,846 1,450,351

Security on loans and advances
Please refer Section on Credit Risk under risk management for details of securities held against loans and advances.
Credit rating framework

For purposes of determining the credit loss allowances, management determine the credit rating grades of egch loan at the end
of the reporting period. These ratings are determined either externally through ratings agencies or internally where external
ratings are not available. ’

The table below sets out the internal credit rating framework which is applied by management for loans for which external ratings
are not available. The abbreviation "ECL" is used to depict "expected credit losses."

Internal credit grade Description Basis for recognising
expected credit losses

Performing - Stage 1 Low risk of default and no amounts are past due 12m ECL

Doubtful - Stage 2 Either 30 days past due or there has been a significant Lifetime ECL (not credit
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. impaired)

In default - Stage 3 Either 80 days past due or there is evidence that the assetis  Lifetime ECL (credit impaired)
credit impaired

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the counterparty is in severe  Amount is written off

financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
Exposure to credit risk

Loans and advances inherently expose the bank to credit risk, being the risk ihat the bank will incur financial loss i customers
fail to make payments as they fall due.

In order to mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults, the bank only deals with reputable customers with consistent payment
histories. Sufficient collateral or guarantees are also obtained when appropriate. Each customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before terms and conditions are offered. Statistical credit scoring models are used to analyse customers. These
models make use of information submitted by the customers as well as external bureau data (where available). Customer credit
limits are in place and are reviewed and approved by credit management committees. The exposure to credit risk and the
creditworthiness of customers, is continuously monitored.

There have been no significant changes in the credit risk management policies and processes since the prior reporting period.

In response to the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic and the measures implemented by the Government of Botswana, the bank
temporarily extended payment holidays for specific customers and used available information when calculating expected credit
losses (ECL) on a collective basis. Where a payment holiday was extended, the bank assessed if these resulted in significant
increase in credit risk on a case-by-case basis after considering the nature of business, the banking relationship and the security
of the customers.
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Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
(Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Pula thousand 2022 2021

6. Financial assets - investments {continued)
Fair values
The fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying amounts.

7. Loans and advances

Financial instruments:

Term loans 1,272,222 1,203,494
Loans and overdrafts against bank own deposits 104,753 75,887
Demand and overdraft advances 263,726 228,455
Loss allowance {54,855) (57,485)
Loans and advances at amortised cost 1,585,846 1,450,351
Total loans and advances 1,585,848 1,450,351

Security on foans and advances

Please refer Section on Credit Risk under risk management for details of securities held against loans and advances.

Credit rating framework

For purposes of determining the credit loss allowances, management determine the credit rating grades of each loan at the end
of the reporting period. These ratings are determined either externally through ratings agencies or internally where external

ratings are not available.

The table below sets out the internal credit rating framewaork which is applied by management for loans for which external ratings
are not available. The abbreviation "ECL" is used to depict "expected credit losses."

Internal credit grade Description Basis for recognising
expected credit losses

Performing - Stage 1 Low risk of default and no amounts are past due 12m ECL

Doubtful - Stage 2 Either 30 days past due or there has been a significant Lifetime ECL (not credit
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. impaired)

In default - Stage 3 Either 90 days past due or there is evidence that the assetis  Lifetime ECL (credit impaired)
credit impaired

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the counterparty is in severe  Amount is written off

financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
Exposure to credit risk

Loans and advances inherently expose the bank to credit risk, being the risk that the bank will incur financial loss if customers
fail to make payments as they fall due.

In order to mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults, the bank only deals with reputable customers with consistent payment
histories. Sufficient collateral or guarantees are also obtained when appropriate. Each customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before terms and conditions are offered. Statistical credit scoring models are used to analyse customers. These
models make use of information submitted by the customers as well as external bureau data (where available). Customer credit
limits are in place and are reviewed and approved by credit management committees. The exposure to credit risk and the
creditworthiness of customers, is continuously monitored.

There have been no significant changes in the credit risk management policies and processes since the prior reporting period.

In response to the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic and the measures implemented by the Governiment of Botswana, the bank
temporarily extended payment holidays for specific customers and used available information when calculating expected credit
losses (ECL) on a collective basis. Where a payment holiday was extended, the bank assessed if these resulted in significant
increase in credit risk on a case-by-case basis after considering the nature of business, the banking relationship and the security
of the customers.
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7. Loans and advances (continued)

A loss allowance is recognised for alf loans and advances to customers, in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and is
monitored at the end of each reporting period. In addition to the loss allowance, loans and advances to customers are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, for example, when a debtor has been placed under liquidation. loans and
advances to customers which have been writien off are not subject to enforcement activities.

The loss allowance provision is determined as follows:

2022 2022 2021 2021
Estimated Loss Estimated Loss
gross allowance gross allowance
carrying carrying
amount at amount at
Expected credit loss rate: default default
Performing - no default history
Stage 1 (12 M Credit loss recognised) 1,261,502 25,191 1,188,838 24,978
Previously defaulting customers
Stage 2 (Lifetime Credit loss recognised) 366,636 18,8686 304,071 17,581
~
Customers in default
Stage 3 (Lifetime Credit loss recognised) 12,563 10,798 14,926 14,926
Total 1,640,701 54,855 1,507,835 57,485

The table below represents the different stages for the loan categories as at 31 Mar 2022

Categories Stage 1 ECL (12 M) Stage2 Lifetime ECL Stage 3 Lifetime ECL Total Loans Total ECL
Business foans 1,090,024 22,124 335,776 18,325 7,765 6,000 1,433,565 46,449
Housing loans 92,932 928 23,009 323 1,404 1,404 117,345 2,655
Vehicle loans 22,679 226 5177 74 219 219 28,075 519
Perscnal loans 55,867 1,913 2,674 144 3,175 3,175 61,716 5,232
Total 1,261,502 25,191 366,636 18,866 12,563 10,798 1,640,701 54,855
The table below represents the different stages for the loan categories as at 31 March 2021.

Categories Stage 1 ECL (12 M) Stage2 Lifetime ECL Stage 3 Lifetime ECL TotalLoans Total ECL
Business loans 949,967 19,994 273,186 16,676 8,725 8,725 1,231,878 45,395
Housing loans 130,940 2,144 21,776 617 592 592 153,308 3,353
Vehicle loans 69,817 1,215 7,962 233 791 791 78,570 2,239
Personal loans 38,114 1.625 1,147 55 4,818 4,818 44,079 6,498
Total 1,188,838 24,978 304,071 17,581 14,926 14,926 1,507,835 57,485




Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited

(Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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7. Loans and advances (continued)
Reconciliation of loss allowances

The following table shows the movement in the loss allowance (lifetime expected credit losses) forloans and advances:

Opening balance in accordance with IFRS g {57,485) (75,421)
Provisions reversed on foans and advances 4,527 18,202
Provision raised on new loans and advances {1,897) (266)
Closing balance (54,855) (57,485)

Exposure to currency risk

Refer to note 29 for details of currency risk management for loans and advances.
Fair value of ioans and advances

The fair value of loans and advances approximates their carrying amounts,

8. Other assets

Other assets 2,542 3,731

9. Right of use asset

Opening balance 16,700 16,700

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance (6,257) (3,528}
Depreciation for the year (2,802) (2,729)
{9,059) (6,257)

Carrying value

Opening balance 10,443 13,172
Depreaciation (2,802) (2,729)
7,641 10,443

10. Deferred tax
Deferred tax asset

Property plant and equipment 10 10

Deferred tax asset 10 10

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset

At beginning of year 10 10
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Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited

{Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2022

Opening Additions  Depreciation Total
balance
l.easehold property 1,167 86 (24) 1,228
Furniture and fixtures 773 110 210) 673
Motor vehicles 69 169 (63) 175
Office equipment 1,077 165 (139) 1,103
IT equipment 859 - (280) 579
Leasehold improvements : 1,603 - (760} 843
5,548 530 (1,476) 4,602
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021
Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total
balance
{ easehold property 1,167 - - - 1,167
Furniture and fixtures 847 359 - {233} 773
Motor vehicles 182 - - (113} 69
Office equipment 1,549 108 - (580) 1,077
IT equipment 601 544 (186) (270) 859
Leasehold improvements 1,814 485 - (696) 1,603
5,960 1,496 (16) {1,892) 5,548
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Figures in Pula thousand 2022 2021

12. Stated capital

Reconciliation of number of shares issued:

Reported as at 1 April 181,000 181,000

Issued

Ordinary (181000000 shares at no par value and fully paid up) 181,000 181,000

Capital adequacy

Core capital (Tier 1)

Stated capital 181,000 181,000

Retained earnings- Beginning of the year 210,902 168,659

Dividends (3,050} (9,050)

Current year audited profits 59,406 51,292

IFRS 9 - Transition provision adjustmentis to CET - 5,670

442,258 397,571

Supplementary capital (Tier 2)

IFRS 8 - Transition provision on Stage 1 and Stage 2 11,876 11,876

Total eligible capital (Unimpaired capital) - Tier 1 + Tier 2 454,134 409,447

Risk weighted assets

Credit risk 1,812,063 1,704,538

Operational risk 55,725 50,676

Market risk 4,000 2,803

Total risk adjusted exposure 1,871,788 1,758,017

Minimum capital required as per Bank of Botswana guidelines (12.5% (2021:12.5%) of 233,974 219,752

Risk adjusted exposure)

Excess capital over minimum required 220,160 189,695

Capital adequacy ratio 24.26 % 2329 %

Bank of Botswana required minimum ratio 12.50 % 12.50 %

Excess over the minimum required (%) 11.76 % 10.79 %

13. Deposits due to customers

Held at amortised cost

Interest bearing deposits from Banks 55,867 116,610

Interest bearing deposits from others 1,570,686 1,435,676

Non interest bearing deposits 284,361 257,586
J 1,910,914 1,809,772

Exposure to liquidity risk

Refer to note 29 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of liquidity risk exposure and management.

Exposure to currency risk

Refer to note 28 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of currency risk management.
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13. Deposits due to customers {continued)

Exposure to interest rate risk

Refer to note 29 for details of interest rate risk management.
14. Lease liabilities

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 2,585 3,332
- in second to fifth year inclusive 3,985 5877
- later than five years 1,253 1,479

7,823 10,688
less: future finance charges (259) (323)
Present value of minimum lease payments 7,564 10,365

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- within one year 2,499 3,009
- in second to fifth year inclusive 3,853 5,877
- later than five years 1,212 1,479

7.564 10,365

The average lease term for the right of use assets was 3-5 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 2.46% (2021
2.46%).

15. Other accruals and creditors

Creditors and accruals 6,209 10,127
VAT 1,167 917
7,376 14,044

Exposure to currency risk

Refer to note 29 Financial instruments and financial risk managerment for details of currency risk management.

Exposure to liquidity risk

Refer to note 29 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of liquidity risk exposure and management.

18. Interest and similar income

Interest from loans and advances 119,417 98,012
Interest and gains from BOBC and similar instruments 2,905 2,186
Interest from financial assets and bank placements 1,692 7,383

124,014 107,581

17. Interest and similar expenditure

Interest 41,472 40,182
Interest on term deposits 34,657 30,810
Interest on savings depaosits 4,312 4,341
Interest on short term borrowings 175 2,773
Interest on call deposits 1,586 1,935
Interest on lease liabilities 732 323

41,472 40,182
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21. Taxation {continued)

Reconciliation of the tax expense

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.

Accounting profit 76,136 65,691

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 22% (2021: 22%) 16,750 14,452

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income

Permanent differences (20) (53)
16,730 14,399

22, Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing profit or loss atiributable to the ordinary equity holders by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

Earnings per share - In thebe

Dividends per share
Final {thebe)
23. Cash generated from operations

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Gains on disposals, scrappings and settlements of assets and liabilities
Effect of forex exchange gains on cash balances

Net impairments and movements in credit Joss allowances
Changes in working capital:

Loans and advances

Other asset

Other accruals and creditors

Deposits due to customers

24. Tax paid

Balance at beginning of the year
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss

25. Dividends paid

Dividends

41

59,406 51,201
181,000 181,000
32.82 28.34
0.50 0.50
76,136 65,691
4,277 4617
(245) 6)
4,981 2,470
(709) 266
(133,683) (275,743)
1,189 (2,543)
(3,665) 1,687
99,224 226,693
47,505 23,132
- (2,600)
(16,730) (14,400)
(16,730) (17,000)
(9,050) (9,050)
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{Registration number BW00000570268)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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18. Other operating income

Miscellaneous income 5,276 5114

Commissions received 763 827

Recoveries 286 15

Gain on foreign exchange transactions 16,660 20,599
22,985 26,555

19. Other operating gains

Gains on disposals, scrappings and settlements

Property, plant and equipment 11 245 6

20. Operating profit (loss)

Operating profit for the year is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others:

Auditor's remuneration - external

Audit fees 118 550

Employee costs

Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits 13,374 11,580

Housing keeping and other allowances 1,144 1,020

Retirement benefit plans: pension 443 343

Termination benefits: Provident fund 244 326

Total employee costs 15,205 13,269

Depreciation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1476 1,892

Depreciation on rights to use asset 2,801 2,725

Total depreciation 4,277 4,617

Movement in credit loss allowances

Loans and advances (709) 266

Expenses by nature

Employee costs 15,205 13,269

Operating lease charges 366 72

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 4,277 4,617

Other expenses 10,497 10,045
30,345 28,003

21. Taxation

Major components of the tax expense

Current

Local income tax - current period 16,730 14,400
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26. Contingencies
Litigations

In 2015, a claim of P 1.5 million was instituted against the Bank for the unauthorised usage of an individual's photograph in a
local advertisement, It is view of the Bank's management that the marketing consultant engaged by the Bank had used the
photograph based on some arrangement they had and the claimant has named the Bank as the third party to the suit. The Bank
has engaged its attorneys to defend the suit. Management does not expect any pay-out 1o the merits of the case as they are of
the view that the case is primarily between the marketing consultant and the claimant. Consequentially, no provision has been
recognised in the financial statements.

Guarantees

Guarantees provided by the Bank consist significantly of financial guarantees and performance guarantees provided to clients in
the construction, telecommunication operators and service industry

These guarantees are fully secured against custormner deposits and are therefore fully reimbursable in the event of the Bank
being called upon to meet its obligations.

it is impracticable to determine the timing of any outflows, as this is entirely dependent on the meeting of obligations by clients.

Contingencies
Guarantees 81,728 84,369
Letters of credit 1,566 9,063

83,294 93,432
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27. Related parties

Bank of Baroda Botswana Limited is a fully owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda, a company incorporated in India. Subsidiary
companies and branches of Bank of Baroda are related parties of Bank by the virtue of holding/subsidiary relationship.

Related parties are considered to be related if one has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other in making financial or operating decisions. A number of transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal
course of business,

Relationships

Holding company Bank of Baroda
Joint ventures India First Life Insurance Company Limited
India Infradebt Limited
Fellow subsidiaries under common management Baroda BNP Paribas Trustee India Private Limited

(Formerly Baroda Trustee India Private Limited)
Baroda BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private
Limited
Baroda Global Shared Services Limited
BOB Financial Solutions Limited
BOB Capital Markets Lid.
Nainital Bank Ltd
Bank of Baroda (Kenya) Ltd
Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Ltd
Bank of Baroda (Guyana) Inc.
Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Ltd
Bank of Baroda (UK) Ltd
Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Lid
Overseas branches of Bank of Baroda, India Bank of Baroda New York
Bank of Baroda London
Bank of Baroda Brussels
Bank of Baroda Mauritius
Bank of Baroda Sydney
Bank of Baroda Dubai
Bank of Baroda Tanzania
Associates of the holding company Baroda Uttar Pradesh Gramin Bank
Baroda Rajasthan Gramin Bank
Baroda Gujarat Gramin Bank
Indo Zambia Bank Limited
India International Bank Malaysia Behrad
Directors of the bank Refer to information page
Members of key management Mr S K Singh
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27. Related parties (continued)

Related party balances and transactions

Balance with banks*

Bank of Baroda Mumbai 3,001 2,018

Bank of Baroda New York 205,693 180,344

Bank of Baroda London 6,385 6,759

Bank of Baroda Brussels 3,996 3,480

Bank of Baroda Sydney 865 227
219,940 192,828

Placement balances*
Bank of Baroda Tanzania 34,294

*These balances pertain to Nostro account balances and short term placements during regular course of transactions. Interest
rate where applicable is based on the prevailing market conditions. These placements are usually cn a short term basis (upto a

year), and are unsecured.

interest income
Bank of Baroda New York -
Bank of Baroda Dubai -

8,284
314

8,598

Interest expenditure
Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited -
Bank of Baroda Mauritius -

765
2,261

3,026

Transactions with key management
Board sitting fees 153

123

Management fees paid
Bank of Baroda, india 1,489

960

Compensation to key management personnel
Salaries and perquisites 883

755

28. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified. There is no material impact due to these reclassifications. These
reclassifications are made in the statement of cash flows and statement of comprehensive income.
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Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
(Registration number BW00000570268)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

28. Financial instruments and risk management {continued)

Categories of financial liabilities

2022

Note(s)
Accruals and other payables 15
Deposits due to customers 13
Lease liabilities 14
2021

Note(s)
Accruals and other payables 15
Deposits due to customers 13
Lease liabilities 14

Capital risk management

Amortised Leases Total Fair value
cost
6,202 - 6,202 6,202
1,810,814 - 1,910,914 1,910,914
- 7,564 7,564 7,664
1,917,116 7,564 1,924,680 1,924,680
Amortised Leases Total Fair value
cost
10,121 - 10,121 10,121
1,809,772 - 1,800,772 1,809,772
- 10,365 10,365 10,365
1,819,893 10,365 1,830,258 1,830,258

The Bank's objective when maintaining capital, is to comply with the requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets
where the Bank operates, to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of

its business

Regulatory compliance

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored by the Bank, applying techniques based on the guidelines

developed by the Basel Committee an Banking Regulations and Supervision

Directives, as implemented by the Bank of Botswana for supervisory purposes.

(Basel Committee) and European Community

These techniques include the risk weighted asset ratio, which the Bank of Botswana regards as a key supervisory tool. The Bank

of Botswana has set the individual minimum ratio requirements for Banks in Botswana at 12.5% which is above the Basel

Committee minimum guideline of 8%. The ratio calculation involves the application of designated risk weightings to reflect an
estimate of credit, operational, market and other risks associated with broad categories of transactions and counterparties.

The Bank has complied with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the period
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29. Financial instruments and risk management {continued)
Financial risk management
Overview

The bank is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
. Credit risk;
. Liquidity risk; and
*  Market risk (currency risk and inferest rate risk).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. It is the risk that the Bank's customers, clients or counterparties will not be able or willing to pay interest,
repay capital or otherwise fail to fulfil their contractual obligations under loan agreements or other credit facilities. Credit risk also
arises through the downgrading of counterparties whose credit instruments the Bank may be holding, causing the value of those
assets to fall. Furthermore, credit risk is manifested as sector risk where difficulties experienced by the sector in which the
exposure is domiciled may impede payment or reduce the value of the asset. Settlement risk is another special form of credit risk
which is the possibility that the Bank may pay a counterparty ~ for example, a Bank in a foreign exchange transaction — and fail
to receive the corresponding settlement in return

Credit risk is the Bank’s largest risk and considerable resources, expertise and controls are devated to managing it.

The bank is exposed to credit risk on financial assets - investments, loans and advances, cash and cash equivalents, loan
comrmmitments and financial guarantees.

Credit risk for exposures other than those arising on cash and cash equivalents, are managed by making use of credit approvals,
limits and monitoring. The bank only deals with reputable counterparties with consistent payment histories. Sufficient collateral or
guarantees are also obtained when necessary. Each counterparty is analysed individually for creditworthiness before terms and
conditions are offered. The analysis involves making use of information submitted by the counterparties as well as external
bureau data (where available). Counterparty credit fimits are in place and are reviewed and approved by credit management
committees. The exposure to credit risk and the creditworthiness of counterparties is continuously monitored,

Credit risk exposure arising on cash and cash equivalents is managed by the bank through dealing with well-established
financial institutions with high credit ratings.

Credit loss allowances for expected credit losses are recognised for all debt instruments, but excluding those measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Credit loss allowances are also recognised for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

In order to calculate credit loss allowances, management determine whether the loss allowances should be calculated on a 12
month or on a lifetime expected credit loss basis. This determination depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk, then the loss allowance is
calculated based on lifetime expected credit losses. If not, then the loss aflowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses.
This determination is made at the end of each financial period. Thus the basis of the loss allowance for a specific financial asset
could change year on year.

Management apply the principle that if a financial asset's credit risk is low at year end, then, by implication, the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition. In all such cases, the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit
losses. Credit risk is assessed as low if there is a low risk of default (where default is defined as occurring when amounts are 90
days past due), When determining the risk of default, management consider information such as payment history to date,
industry in which the customer belongs, period for which the customer has been active, external credit references efc. In any
event, if amounts are 30 days past due, then the credit risk is assumed to have increased significantly since initial recognition.
Credit risk is not assessed to be low simply because of the value of collateral associated with a financial instrument. if the
instrument would not have a low credit risk in the absence of collateral, then the credit risk is not considered low when taking the
collateral into account.
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29. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Credit rating assessment at the time of sanction and review

The Bank uses an internally developed credit rating system for exposure limits to business and commercial loans in excess of P
200 000 . The rating system takes into account the financial discipline of the borrower and is based on the latest financial
statements availed to the Bank, Ratings of the most credit-worthy customer are assigned at AAA and decrement points system
is used. Ratings below BBB are not considered by the Bank as viable option. Loans to individuals are not rated.

At the reporting date, exposures to customers categorised into ratings are as follows

2022 2021
AAA 948,265 941,002
AA 514,690 348,040
A 31,580 86,440
B and BBB 8,460 4,638
Unrated and NPA 137,706 127,809

1,640,701 1,507,836

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

2022 2021

Gross Creditloss Amortised Gross Creditloss Amortised
carrying allowance cost/ fair carrying allowance cost/ fair

amount value amount value
Balances with other banks 5 392,440 ~ 392,440 489,504 - 489,504
Financial assets and other 6 281,204 - 281,204 111,378 - 111,378
invesiments
Loans and advances fo 7 1,640,701 (54,855) 1,585,846 1,507,836 (57,485) 1,450,351
customers
Cash and cash equivalents 4 93,827 - 93,827 152,117 - 152,117

2,408,172 (54,855) 2,353,317 2,260,835 (57,485) 2,203,350

Sensitivity of ECL to future economic conditions

The ECL are sensitive to judgements and assumptions made regarding formulation of forward looking scenarios and how such
scenarios are incorporated into the calculations. Management performs a sensitivity analysis on the ECL recognised on material
classes of its assets, The management uses inflation, GDP information, unemployment and other macro factors for calculations
of the ECL. The management estimates that the credit loss would increase by P 5 million should there be any change by more
than 10% in the underlying factors and resultantly would decrease the profit after tax and the equity by the same amount.
Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained

The following table analyses the collateraf and other credit enhancements before impairments

Collateral classified as follows

Secured by cash 104,753 75,880
Secured by mortgages on properties and hypothecation of other assets 1,488,236 1,396,780
Unsecured 47,712 35,176

1,640,701 1,507,836

Concentration risk

The bank had a significant concentration risk resulting from its top ten customers. The total exposure relating to these customers
was P('000) 461 419 (2021: P316 314), comprising 28% of the gross loan book at the reporting date.
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28. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

In addition, these exposures individually exceeded 10% of the bank's unimpaired capital and comprised 100% (2021:81%) of the
unimpaired capital at the reporting date.

Liquidity risk
The liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to meet financial or settlement obligation to customers or counterparties.

The Bank's Asset-Liabilities Committees (ALCO) is charged to ensure access to funds and to avoid a concentration of funding
needs at any one time or from any one source. Meetings are held every quarter and also when there are changes to Bank of
Botswana rate.

ALCO also controls asset maturities as well as the volume and quality of holdings of liquid assets and short term funds. in
evaluating the Bank’s liquidity position, ALCO takes account of lending commitments not drawn, the use of overdraft facilities
and the possible impact of outstanding contingent liabilities, such as letters of credit and guarantees.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the
business of the Bank. It is unusual for Banks to be completely matched, as transacted business is often of unceriain term and of
different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing Habilities as they mature
are important factors in assessing the fiquidity of the Bank and its exposure to changes in interest rates,

The Bank's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabiliies when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Bank's reputation.

Primary reserve held is 2.5% (2021:2.5%) of net local currency deposits and liquid asset ratio is 10% of net local currency
deposits.
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29. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Maturity Profile

The table below analyses assets and liabilities of the table into
balance sheet date to the remaining contractual maturity date.

At 31 March 2022

Assetls

Cash and Balances with Bank of Botswana
Balances with other banks

Other financial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Total financial assets

Non - financial assets

Plant and equipment and ROU
Other assets

Deferred tax

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits due to customers
Lease liabilities

Creditors, accruals and tax

Total financial liabilities
Equity funds

Total liabilities and equity
Net liquidity gap

Off balance sheet items- Guarantees

At March 31, 2021

Cash and Balances with Bank of Botswana
Balances with other banks

Other financial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Total financial assets

Non - financial assets

Plant and equipment and right to use asset
Other assets

Deferred tax

Total assets
Deposit due to customers
Finance lease liability

Creditors and accruals and taxation payable

Total financial liabilities

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at

Upto 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 Total
3months years
93,827 - - - 93,827
392,440 - - - 392,440
49,980 - - 231,214 281,204
329,109 91,435 338,578 826,724 1,585,846
865,366 91,435 338,578 1,057,938 2,353,317
- - - 12,243 12,243
- 2,542 - - 2,542
- - 10 - 10
865,366 93,977 338,588 1,070,181 2,368,112
495,780 425723 988,696 - 1,810,199
- 2,499 3,853 1,212 7.564
- 8,091 - - 8,091
495,780 436,313 992,549 1,212 1,925,854
- - - 442,258 442 258
495,780 436,313 992,549 443,470 2,368,112
369,586 {342,336) (653,961) 626,711 -
- - 83,294 - 83,294
Upto 3-12months 1-5years Over5 years Total
3months
162,117 - - - 152,117
489,504 - - - 489,504
49,991 - - 61,387 111,378
229,096 47,991 345,655 827,609 1,450,351
920,708 47,991 345,655 888,996 2,203,350
- - - 15,991 15,891
- 3,731 - - 3,731
- - 10 - 10
920,708 51,722 345,665 904,987 2,223,082
1,283,336 349,565 176,871 - 1,809,772
- 3,009 5,877 1,478 10,365
- 11,043 - - 11,043
1,283,336 363,617 182,748 1,479 1,831,180
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29. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Equity funds - - - 391,802 391,902
Total liabilities and equity 1,283,336 363,617 182,748 393,381 2,223,082
Net liquidity gap (362,628) (311,895) 162,917 511,606 -
Off balance sheet items- Guarantees and LCs - - 93,432 - 93,432
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29. Financial instruments and risk management {continued)

Foreign currency risk

The bank is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of certain transactions and borrowings which are denominated in foreign
currencies. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising foreign forward exchange
contracts where necessary. The foreign currencies in which the bank deals primarily are US Dollars, Euros, GBP, ZAR and INR.
The bank through treasury, manages foreign currency risk in accordance with broad rigk guidelines set by the Board. Foreign

currency risk arises as a resuft of fluctuations in exchange rates and the resultant impact on the Bank’s position, which is
established during normai day to day trading. During the financial year under review, the Bank's authorised Net open position

There have been no significant changes in the foreign currency risk management policies and processes since the prior
teporting period.

Exposure in Pula

The net carrying amounts, in Pula, of the various exposures, are denominated in the following currencies. The amounts have
been presented in Pula by converting the foreign currency amounts at the closing rate at the reporting date: {Amounts in 000)

US Dollar exposure:

Loans and advances 72 18,569

Cash and cash equivalents 3,893 96

Balances with other banks 205,693 347.691

Deposits due to customers (337,294) (362,153)
Net US Dollar exposure {127,638) 4,203

Euro exposure:

Balances with other banks 3,996 3,481

Deposits due to customers 13 (3.991) (3,433)
Net Euro exposure 5 48

GBP exposure:

Balances with other banks 6,385 6,760

Deposits due to customers (6,349) (6,083)
Net GBP exposure 36 677

ZAR exposure:

Cash and cash equivalents 64 55

Balances with other banks 22,932 29,606

Deposits due to customers 13 (14,552) (21,501)
ZAR exposure 8,444 8,160

AUD and INR exposure:

Balances with other banks 3,865 2,246

Deposits due to customers 13 (789 (324)

52




Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited

(Registration number BW0D000570268)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Pula thousand 2022 2021

29. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Net AUD and INR exposure: 3,078 1,822

Net exposure to foreign currency in Pula {116,075} 15,010

Exposure in foreign currency amounts

The net carrying amounts, in foreign currency (amount in 000) of the above exposure was as follows:

US Dollar exposure:

Loans and advances 6 1,875

Cash and cash equivalents 344 9

Balances with other banks 18,019 31,362

Deposit due to customers (29,547) (32,666)
Net US Dollar exposure (11,181) 380

Euro exposure:

Balances with other banks 314 278

Deposits due to customers (313) (274)
Net Euro exposure 1 4

GBP exposure:

Balances with other banks 428 443

Deposits due to customers (423) {398)
Net GBP exposure 3 45

ZAR exposure:

Cash and cash equivalents 82 73
Balances with other banks 29,163 39,728

Deposit due to customers (18,506} (28,852)
Net ZAR exposure 10,738 10,949

AUD and INR exposure;

Balances with other banks 19,921 13,287

Deposit due to customers (82) (38)
Net AUD and INR exposure 19,829 13,249
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29, Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Exchange rates

The following closing exchange rates were applied at reporting date;

Pula per unit of foreign currency:

US Dollar 11.415 11.090
Euro 12.739 12.520
ZAR 0.788 0.745
GBP 14.99 15.27
INR 0.18 0.15
AUD 0.117 0.118

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following information presents the sensitivity of the bank to an increase or decrease in the respective currencies it is
exposed to. The sensitivity rate is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internafly to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated amounts and adjusts their translation at the reporting date. No changes
were made to the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis compared to the previous

reporting period.

Increase or decrease in rate

Impact on profit or loss:

US Dollar 10% (2021: 10 %)
Euro 10% (2021: 10 %)

GBP 10% (2021: 10 %)

ZAR 10% (2021: 10 %)

AUD and INR 10% (2021: 10 %)

Impact on equity:
increase in Tier 1 Capital due to increase in exchange rates
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2022 2022 2021 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(55) 55 (420) 420
(871) 871 (6,221) 5,221
n (68) 68
4 (816) 816
5 (5) (296) 296
{926) 926 {6,821) 6,821
926 (926) 6,821 (6,821)
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Interest rate risk

The bank has an active ALCO whose responsibility is for balance sheet planning from risk returns perspective, particularly
strategic management of interest rate risk. There is an interest rate risk management policy that gives guidance on the
management of the following: 1. Gap or Mismatch risk 2. Basis risk 3. Embedded Option risk 4. Yield Curve risk 5, Price risk 6.
Reinvestment risk

Gap or Mismatch Risk Gap or mismatch risk arises from differences in maturity dates, repricing dates and principal amounts of
assets and labilities. On account of the mismatch, interest rate change can alter the income and economic value.

Basis Risk Even in a perfectly matched gap position, there is a risk that the interest rates of different instruments on different
basis viz. BOBCs vield or US$ LIBOR etc. will not change by the same degree during a given period of time. Basis risk arises
from the possibility that the interest rates of different assets and liabilities, which have different basis, change in different
magnitudes.

Embedded Option Risk: Changes in the level of interest rates can cause prepayment of loans and the exercise of put/call
options on bonds and withdrawal of deposits before their stated maturity dates. If not adequately managed, instruments with
optionality features can pose significant risk as options are generally exercised to the advantage of the holder of the option.

Yietd Curve Risk: The yield on various assets does not change equally with change in interest rate due to differing maturities.
The unequal change in yield of different assets for different maturifies for a specific change in interest rate gives rise to yield
curve risks. The Bank's endeavour will be to take a view of possible movement of interest rate change over a period of twelve
months, since major part of assets are by way of Overdraft facility for twelve months and Loan facility extending beyond twelve
months.

Price Risk: When assets are sold at a price lower than cost price a price risk occurs. However, the Bank's policy is to manage
our liabilities in such a way that it will not be in a situation where securities will be sold at a price fower than purchase price.

Reinvestment Risk: This risk arises from the uncertainty regarding the interest rate at which future cash flow can be reinvested,
Thus the interest rate risk of the financial institution has to be seen not from the traditional earnings perspective only, but more
importantly, from the economic value perspective also as variation in interest rates can affect the econormic value of its assets,
liabilities and off balance sheet positions. The sensitivity of economic value to fluctuations in interest rates is of considerable
importance to all the stakeholders and the supervisors.

interest rate profile

The interest rate profile of interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

At 31 March 2022 Under-3 3to12 1-5years Over5 Non - Non- Total

months months years interest financial

bearing

Cash and balances with Bank of - - - - 93827 - 93,827
Botswana
Balances with other banks 392,440 - - - - - 392,440
Investment in Bank of Botswana 49,890 - - 231,214 ~ - 281,204
Certificates
Loans and advances to customers 328,109 91435 338,578 826,724 - - 1,585,846
Total financial assets 771,539 91,435 338,578 1,057,938 93,827 - 2,353,317
Non - financial assets
Plant and equipment and ROU - - - - - 12,243 12,243
Deferred tax - - - - - 10 10
Other assetls - - - - - 2,542 2,542
Total Assets 771,539 91,435 338,578 1,057,938 93,827 14,795 2,368,112
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Liabilities

Deposits due to customers 495,780 425,723 - 731,875 256,821 1,910,199
Balance due to other banks - - - - - -
Creditors, accruals and lease liability - 2,499 3,853 1,212 8.091 15,655
Total financial liabilities 495,780 428,222 3,853 733,087 264,912 1,925,854
Equity funds and other liabilities - - - - 442 258 442 258
Total liabilities 495,780 428,222 3,853 733,087 707,170 2,368,112
Net interest gap liquidity 275,759 (336,787) 334,725 324,851 (613,343) -
At 31 March 2021 Under-3 312 1-5years over5 Non Non- Total

months Months years interest financial

bearing

Cash and balances with Bank of - - - - 152,117 - 152,117
Botswana
Investments in Bank of Botswana 49,991 - - 61,387 - - 111,378
Certificates and Securities
Balances with other banks 489,504 - - - - - 489,504
Loans and advances to customers 229,096 47,991 345655 827,609 - - 1,450,351
Total financial assets 768,591 47,991 345855 888,996 152,117 - 2,203,350
Nen - financial assetfs
Plant and equipment and right to use - - - - - 15,991 15,991
asset
Deferred tax - - - - - 10 10
Other assets - - - - - 3,731 3,731
Total Assets 768,591 47,991 345655 888,996 152,117 19,732 2,223,082
Liabilities
Deposits due to customers 1,026,515 349,565 - 176,871 256,821 1,809,772
Creditors, accruals and lease liability - 3,009 5,877 1,479 11,043 21,408
Total financial fiabilities 1,026,515 352,574 5877 178,350 267,864 1,831,180
Equity funds and other liabilities - - - - 391,902 391,802
Total liabilities 1,026,515 352,574 5,877 178,350 658,766 2,223,082
Net interest gap liquidity (257,924) {304,583) 339,778 710,846 (507,649) -
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28. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis has been prepared using a sensitivity rate which is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. All other variables remain constant. The sensitivity analysis includes only financial instruments exposed to interest
rate risk which were recognised at the reporting date. No changes were made to the methods and assumptions used in the
preparation of the sensitivity analysis compared to the previous reporting period. These calculations are based on simplified
scenarios. Based on the simulations performed, the impact on pre-tax profit of a .5% shift in interest rates would result in the
following. (Amounts in 000s)

2022 2022 2021 2021

Increase or decrease in rate Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Impact on profit or loss:
investment and bank balances 438 (438) 911 911)
Loans and advances 11,249 (11,249 9,191 (9,191)
Deposits due to customers (3,950) 3,950 (3,826) 3,826

7,737 (7,737) 6,276 (6,278)
Impact on equity:
Impact on Tier 1 capital (7,737) 7,737 (6,276) 6,276

Operational risk

The Bank's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Bank's
reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid controf procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior
management. This responsibility is supported by the holding Bank standards for the management of operational risk in the
following areas:

. requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of transactions:

. requiremnents for the reconciliation and monitoring of fransactions;

. compliance with regulatory and other legat requirements;

. documentation of controls and procedures;

. requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to

address the risks identified;

. requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action;
» development of contingency plans;

. training and professional development;

. ethical and business standards; and

° risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Compliance with the parent Bank's and the Bank of Botswana's requirements are supported by a periodic review undertaken by
the senior management of the Bank. Spot rectifications are, where ever possible, carried out.
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30. Fair value information
Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels
of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observable significant inputs to the measurement, as
follows:

Level 1: Quoted unadjusted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Bank can access at measurement
date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.
)

1
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
All financial assets and liabilities are categorised under Level 2 for the purposes of disclosure.

For loans and advances to customers which are in the nature of overdrafts and short term loans, the estimated fair value
approximates to the carrying value. For deposits due to customers with no stated maturity value which includes non-interest
bearing deposits, the fair value is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits
not quoted in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar remaining
maturity.

Due to the nature of the instruments, the carrying values of all financial assets and liabifities approximately equates to their fair
vaiues.

31. Events after the reporting period

On 24 February 2022, Russia announced a “special military operation” against Ukraine, which has resulted in the on-going
conflict between the two countries. The on-going conflict has seen various economic sanctions being imposed on Russia by the
United States of America, European Union and other countries. Russia is a key player in world economics and the conflict poses
a substantial economic risk for most countries, including Botswana. The conflict and economic sanctions against Russia do not
have an impact on the 31 March 2022 financial statements and are considered a non-adjusting event. Subsequent to the year
end, due to the war, the country is witnessing increase in price of commodities caused mainly by increase in oil prices and cost
of fransport. These increasing cost also affects the GDP growth due to inflation.
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Interest and similar income 16 124,014 107,581
interest and similar expenditure 17 (41,472) {40,182)
Net interest income 82,542 67,399
Other operating income 18 22,885 26,555
Other operating gains (losses)

Gains on disposal of assets or settlernent of liabilities 245 6
Movement in credit loss allowances 20 709 (266)
Expenses (Refer to page 60) (30,345) (28,003)
Profit before taxation 76,136 65,691
Taxation 21 (18,730) (14,400)
Profit for the year 59,406 51,291
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Other operating expenses
Administration and management fees (1,489) (960)
Advertising (125) (199)
Auditors remuneration - external auditors 20 (118) (550)
Board sitting fees (153) (123)
Consulting and professional fees (318) (533)
Consulting and professional fees - legal fees (166) (151}
Depreciation (1,476) (1,892)
Depreciation- Righis of use asset (2.801) (2,725)
Employee costs (15,205) (13,269)
Entertainment 4) (5)
IT expenses (29) (23)
Insurance (843) (1,022)
Lease rentals on operating lease {366) {72)
Motor vehicle expenses (252) (239)
Municipal expenses 379) (362)
Printing and stationery (401) (378)
Rates, licenses and fevies (613) (512)
Repairs and maintenance (2,109} (1,628)
Security (827) (805)
Staff welfare (528) (260)
Telephone and fax (714) (894)
Travel (379) (436}
VAT expenses (1,050) (965)
(30,345) (28,003)
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